ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
February 26, 2003
8:34 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Peggy Wl son, Vice Chair
Representative Pete Kott

Representative Cheryll Heinze

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 90

"An Act relating to a salnon product developnent tax credit
under the Al aska fisheries business tax and the Al aska fisheries
resource | anding tax; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 90

SHORT TI TLE: TAX CREDI T FOR SALMON DEVELOPNMENT
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 10/ 03 0170 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 10/ 03 0170 (H FSH, RES, FIN

02/ 10/ 03 0170 (H REFERRED TO FI SHERI ES

02/ 12/ 03 0203 (H COSPONSOR(S): WOLF

02/ 26/ 03 (H FSH AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER
CHERYL SUTTON, Staff

to the Joint Legislative Sal non I ndustry Task Force
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- February 26, 2003



Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 90 on behalf of the sponsor
Senator Ben Stevens, who chairs the Joint Legislative Salnon
I ndustry Task Force.

CHUCK HARLAMERT, Juneau Section Chi ef

Tax Di vi sion

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Di scussed the departnent's concerns and the
fiscal note as it related to Version D.

BUCK LAUKITI S, President

North Pacific Fishing Association

Honmer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 90, testified in
support of the incentive process.

CHRI S GARCI A

Cook Inlet Fisherman's Fund

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 90, testified in
support of the intent of [Version D

NORMAN COHEN, Attorney at Law

Bering Sea Fisherman's Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 90, testified on
behalf of the Bering Sea Fisherman's Association in support of
[Version Dl and its intent.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-10, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Conmittee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 8:34 a.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Seaton, WIson, Heinze,
Samuel s, Guttenberg, and Berkowitz. Representative Kott arrived
while the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 90- TAX CREDI T FOR SALMON DEVELOPMENT

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 90, "An Act relating to a salnon product
devel opnment tax credit under the Alaska fisheries business tax

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- February 26, 2003



and the Al aska fisheries resource |anding tax; and providing for
an effective date.™

Number 0390

CHERYL SUTTON, Staff to the Joint Legislative Salnmon Industry
Task Force ("Task Force"), Alaska State Legislature, provided a
sponsor statenment on behalf of Senator Ben Stevens, sponsor, who
chairs the Task Force. She inforned the committee that there is
a proposed commttee substitute (CS) that reflects sonme of the
reconmended anendnents from the Departnent of Revenue, which
were attached to the fiscal note.

Number 0573

CHAI R SEATON asked if there were any objections to adopting the
proposed CS, Version 23-LS0525\D, Uternohle, 2/25/03. There
bei ng no objection, Version D was before the commttee.

M5. SUTTON referred to the sectional analysis and the list of
the changes incorporated in Version D, which are both included
in the conmittee packet. She explained that the purpose of
HB 90 is to provide a salnon product developnent tax credit,
under the Al aska Fisheries Business Tax, for the purpose of
devel opi ng val ue-added sal non products. The belief is that the

bill will provide incentive to the processing sector that now
exi sts. The prospect of receiving a tax credit could be an
incentive to the many small entities and individuals to enter
into the industry. The tax credit is applied toward the
property, and there are strict requirenents in the bil

regarding what can receive the tax credit. The intent of the

proposed commttee substitute, she explained, was to elimnate,
as much as possible, any potential abuses of the tax credit.

M5. SUTTON referred to Section 1 of Version D, which sets forth
t he sal non product devel opnent tax credit. Section 1 delineates
how and where this wll work, as well as how the tax credit
applies and capture the taxes. Furthernore, [Section 1] ensures
that anyone in arrears in any assessnent or taxes under Title
16.51. 120 [ Sal nron Marketing Tax] or worker's conpensation under
AS 23.20 or other taxes or assessnments under the revenue code
may not receive the tax credit. The intent is to ensure that
qualified individuals receive the credit.

M5. SUTTON turned attention to the definitions in this section

specifically on page 2, I|line 20, where the definition of
"qualified investnent" includes the word "predom nately". She

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- February 26, 2003



explained that the tax credit goes to the equipnent and to
ensure that the equipnent is used predomnately to produce
val ue- added sal non products; the Departnent of Revenue had
recommended this change. Also, on line 22, the word "after" was
changed to "beyond". In addition, the word "heading" was
el i m nat ed. She said the intent was to ensure that val ue-added
sal non products go beyond basic gutting of fish, and referred to
the listing of what can be included. She said "headi ng" was
elimnated because "split sides, head on" is an exanple of a
val ue- added sal non product that is produced with the head on.

Nunber 1113

M5. SUTTON referred to Section 2, which holds the municipalities
harm ess relative to their share of the fisheries business tax.
Currently, the bill is structured such that the state will bear
the entire burden in ternms of the share. She nentioned that
this issue would be taken up in the House Finance Commttee.
She pointed out that the resource landing tax was elimnated

fromthe bill because it is illegal to harvest sal non outside of
state waters. There is an incidental harvest that is |anded,
and there is a small tax that is collected. She said they
didn't want to encourage people to illegally catch salnon and
then add value to them so that tax was elimnated from the
bill. It was originally included because there was a question
as to whether there was a discrimnatory issue. It was

elimnated sinply because it does not apply, she stated.
Nunber 1274

M5. SUTTON pointed out that the remaining changes to the bill
are conform ng section nunbers and references. She referred to
Representative Kott's knowl edge of the interstate conmerce
cl ause violations and nentioned the benefit to Al aska busi nesses
and not providing the sanme benefit to non-Al askan businesses.
She explained that the |language was in the bill to protect the
state in the event that soneone is successful in litigation,
which is when these clauses would cone into effect to protect
the state's interests.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there is any indication of a
comer ce cl ause probl em

M5. SUTTON replied that there were lingering issues from a

simlar bill in 1986, and to protect the state's interests,
[ Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services] thought it was in the
state's best interests to include these in the neasure. She

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- February 26, 2003



said she hasn't been contacted by anyone and doesn't anticipate
litigation.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ commented that it was perplexing to be
subjected to comerce clause problens by adjusting in-state
t axes.

M5. SUTTON responded that it was the fairness issue of the
interstate commerce cl ause.

Number 1428

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was a question about products such
as pollock or [ sabl efi sh/ bl ackcod] being harvested that
pertained to not residing in the state; he asked about the
origination of the lingering problemor question.

M5. SUTTON said the "lingering 1issues,” as explained by
Legislative Legal and Research Services, surround the bil
passed in 1986, which largely benefited the ground fisheries and
the hugely devel oped surim industry. She said, as far as she
knows, there was no litigation.

Nunmber 1518

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to page 2, line 6, and asked
why there was a three-year period as opposed to a single year.

M5. SUTTON expl ai ned that when a tax credit was offered in 1986,
it was offered under the sanme scenario, with a basic five-year
pl an, three years during which a tax credit could be applied for
and received. This bill is nodeled largely after that concept.
She related that Senator Ben Stevens believes this should be
offered for a longer period of tine. She noted that the
commttee packet includes a report relative to the successes
under the previous bill, which was issued under the Cooper
Adm nistration. M. Sutton explained that the equipnment that is
purchased has to be placed into service and actually used to
produce val ue-added sal non. The hope is that they wll be
encouraged to continue in that operation, increase production,
and have the tax credit available for a period of tine.

Nunmber 1696

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked how the tax currently works, and
what the thoughts are of the |ocal conmmunities.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- February 26, 2003



M5. SUTTON explained that the "raw fish tax" works by being
shared, with 50 percent staying with the state general fund and
50 percent going out to nunicipalities, boroughs, or cities.
The communities feel strongly that they should receive their
full 50 percent share of that revenue, she related. Thi s has
been an issue in the legislature for a nunber of years. She
noted that through testinony received and the workings of the
Task Force, coastal communities have strongly expressed that
they nmust be held harmless in ternms of that share.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if, with the tax credit, they would
now be getting two-thirds or three-quarters of the noney.

MS. SUTTON answered that the state wll bear the burden of
what ever tax credit there is. Wen the tax is calculated, it
wll be calculated as if there is no tax credit for the
muni ci palities.

Nunmber 1814

CHAIR SEATON posed a situation in which everyone applied for
their maximum [tax credit]. He asked if, in such a situation

the state would receive no salnon raw fish tax while the city
and nunicipalities would still receive their 50 percent share

He related his understanding that if all the processors applied
for their maximum they could apply for 50 percent of the raw
fish tax and therefore 50 percent is what the state's (indisc.)
and the other 50 percent would still go to the nunicipalities.
He characterized that as a worst-case scenario and a hit on the
state's budget. He asked if his understanding was correct.

M5. SUTTON said she did not believe, under any scenario, that
the state would have zero tax revenue from the fisheries
busi ness t ax.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON related her understanding that the
municipalities' share will remain the sane.

IVB. SUTTON said that is correct and noted that [the
municipalities' share] wll be held harm ess.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that he is still trying to
under stand how this works. He asked whether the processors pay
t he tax.

M5. SUTTON answered in the affirnmative.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- February 26, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the fishernmen pay the tax. He
al so asked if the same fish are being taxed tw ce.

M5. SUTTON replied that the sane fish aren't being taxed tw ce.
Whet her or not the fishernmen pay the tax, the nopney cones from
somewher e, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ related his wunderstanding that the
fishermen don't file a tax return, while the processors do.

M5. SUTTON replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ inquired as to the nunber of processors
that file this tax.

M5. SUTTON deferred to the Departnent of Revenue representative.
Number 1939

CHAIR SEATON highlighted that the Departnment of Revenue had
[ expressed the need] to distinguish between the facility being
taxed and the taxpayer. He pointed out that the fish processed
in an area may not be where the val ue-added section goes, which
he believes is related to whether the tax credit should go to
the taxpayer as a general entity or to a specific entity. It
appears that the proposed CS has [utilized] the taxpayer and not
the facility. He inquired as to the reasoning behind that.

M5. SUTTON remarked that this is a confusing issue. She said
that she spent a considerable amount of time wth GCeorge
Ut ernohl e, Legislative Legal and Research Services, with regard
to the recommendations attached to the Departnent of Revenue's
fiscal note. [Legislative Legal and Research Services] believes
that [the state] is capturing what is necessary and providing
the best nmechanism which is incorporated in the proposed CS.
However, she noted that the Departnment of Revenue may still have
sone concerns because the proposed CS cane out early this
norning. M. Sutton nmentioned that this is a policy call.

Nunber 2135

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked if the valuation of the equipnent
is going to be set in regulation. He also asked if there is a
definition for "predom nantly", which is |located on page 2, |ine
22. He pointed out that an individual could sell equipnent to
hi s/ her partner or spouse.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- February 26, 2003



M5. SUTTON acknowl edged the tendency toward corruption that is
i nherent in human nature, and explained that the |egislation has
been tightened as nmuch as possible wthout nmaking it too
onerous. She recalled that the Departnent of Revenue has a very
ardent checklist and process for reviewing these types of

pur chases. Wth regard to the |anguage "predom nantly", M.
Sutton said that was the departnent's choice because the
departnment believes "predomnantly" is a strong word with a

definition that neans nore than half, perhaps even considerably
nore than hal f.

Nunber 2283

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ directed attention to the word "or" on
page 1, line 11. He said it wasn't clear to him how to read
"tax credit" in this provision. He related his understanding
that one can't claim nore than 50 percent of the liability.
However, it isn't clear whether that restriction is curtailed

after Decenber 31 [2005]. He pointed out that "or" is normally
construed as conjunctive; however, the [|anguage doesn't nake
sense that way.

CHAI R SEATON suggested Representative Berkowitz's concern would
be corrected by replacing "or" with "and".

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ replied that he didn't believe the
intent was for "and" |anguage because inserting "and" seens to
create a situation in which an individual can't claim [the tax
credit] after Decenber 31 [2005] regardless.

CHAI R SEATON confirnmed that Representative Berkowitz's reading
with the "and" would be correct. [The intent] was that this
[tax credit] would only apply to property placed in service
bef ore Decenber 31, 2005, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ related his wunderstanding that the
[intent] was to look back and [allow the tax credit] for
i nvestnents that m ght be made this year or next year

CHAI R SEATON agr eed. He noted that he was unsure about this
because the legislation says that [the tax credit] can't be used
for property placed in service after 2005 and yet there is a
three-year carry-forward period to apply to equipnent. He
guesti oned how one could carry forward a tax credit and not be
able to use the tax credit because the equipnment is going to be
pl aced in service after [Decenber 31, 2005]. Chair Seaton noted

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- February 26, 2003



that the proposed CS was received at the last nonent and thus
woul dn't be forwarded from conmmttee today.

Nunber 2510
REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked whomthis legislation is ained at.

M5. SUTTON answered that it targets anyone who wants to do
val ue- added sal non. She noted the hope to encourage new folks
in the business. She explained that the |anguage "on a vessel"
is included because it clarifies that the [fisheries business
tax] would apply to both shore-based [facilities] and vessels in
state waters. The "on a vessel" |anguage was requested by the
Department of Revenue in order to provide clarity.

CHAI R SEATON asked if this would apply in a situation in which a
processor paying taxes in Al aska places val ue-added machinery in
a plant in Portland, O egon.

M5. SUTTON clarified that the tax credit is actually on the
property. She deferred to the Departnent of Revenue with regard
to how and when the tax credit applies. She offered that the
tax credit is on the property first placed into service.

CHAI R SEATON asked if that [property] could be within or outside
of Al aska.

M5. SUTTON answered that it [is on property] w thin Al aska.
Number 2680

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that distinctions are not
bei ng nmade regarding the processing of different species. " For
exanple, if they're getting reds [sockeye sal non] here and pinks
[ hunpback sal non] sonmewhere else, by far the greater value would
cone from Alaska," he said. "And yet we'd be shorted.™
Representative Berkow tz posed the foll ow ng:

The nunerator ... is the weight of raw salnon
processed on the vessel by the taxpayer in Al aska.
Lets assune that's all reds. And the denom nator is

the weight of raw salnon processed on the vessel in
and out of Alaska; so it's the reds in Al aska plus the

pinks that they're getting sonewhere else. So,
they're getting a tax credit for processing outside
pi nks based on weight, but, in ternms of value, the

bul k of value is comng from Al askan wat ers.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- February 26, 2003



M5. SUTTON said although she didn't believe the aforenentioned
assessnment to be correct, she would prefer that M. Harlanert
speak to it.

Nunber 2745

CHUCK HARLAMERT, Juneau Section Chief, Tax Division, Departnent
of Revenue, began by reviewing the fiscal note and the portions
that still apply to Version D He estimated that the |evel of
investment that the <credit would generate is roughly $9.8
mllion, which would generate a credit of $4.9 mllion over five

years. He enphasized that the aforenentioned is a very rough
estimate that assunes the use of the credit ranps up over the
three years of its life, simlar to that for the previous
credit.

MR. HARLAMERT, in response to Chair Seaton, related that the

departnent projects that in fiscal year 2004, $5.6 nmillion in
raw fish tax from salnmon will be coll ected. The tax credit is
expected to ranp up to $2.8 mllion in the third year. The
assunption used was that there would be a |ow threshold up front
that would double each year wuntil the cap is reached. In
further response to Chair Seaton, M. Harlanert confirmed that
the $5.6 mllion is the total raw fish tax, not the state's
portion.

CHAI R SEATON related his understanding, then, that the state's
portion would be $2.8 mllion and the departnent is estimating
that during the ranp up years the estimation is that there wll
be a full $2.8 mllion tax credit. Therefore, the state would
receive very little.

MR. HARLAMERT informed the commttee that it won't reach the
full half, although in theory it could increase to higher than
hal f . M. Harlanert confirned that the $2.8 mllion is an
estimate of the maxinmum liability. He said it was nore |ikely
that it would be nore in the first years and then level out in
the third year

MR. HARLAMERT highlighted that the Departnent of Revenue had

concern W th regard to whether t he [l egislation] IS
intentionally addressing taxpayers versus the facility. The
fisheries business tax applies at the location level and thus
every plant is its own taxpayer. However, one taxpayer can own

many plants or vessels. He expressed the need for the commttee
to keep the aforenentioned in mnd wth regard to the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -10- February 26, 2003



intentions. He asked if the intent is for a taxpayer to be able
to offset taxes from one |ocation against credits generated by
another. The aforenentioned would be desirable if one wants to
maxi m ze use of the credit. However, the only consequence nay
be the generation of effective differences between |arge
t axpayers who can do the aforenentioned and small taxpayers who
don't have the opportunity to offset tax from one plant against
credit generated by another. "It's sinply a matter of whether
you' d rather keep it narrow or expand the ... anount of the
credit that gets used,"” he said.

CHAI R SEATON asked if Version D allows for each facility to
obtain a tax credit on its facility without allowing it to be
aggregat ed across the state.

TAPE 03-10, SIDE B

CHAI R SEATON asked if Wards Cove [Packing Conpany], which is no
| onger in existence, would be able to receive a tax credit from
all of its operations and apply that in one area.

MR. HARLAMERT interpreted Version D to nean that Wards Cove is
the taxpayer and that its credit and the |imtation on that
credit would be calculated based upon all of its activities in
t he state.

CHAI R SEATON posed a scenario in which the conmmttee wanted to
change that and asked if that required |anguage such as
"taxpayer facility".

MR. HARLAMERT indicated |anguage such as "licensed facility"
could be inserted, although that would seriously restrict the
use of the credit. M. Harlanert said that he thought that the
drafters addressed that issue "and decided to retain up front
overall the taxpayer view of |ooking at the taxpayer as the
conpany so that you can offset those liabilities.” M.
Harlanmert related that the taxes that can be offset with this
credit include taxes on fish that is exported from the state
unprocessed. If the intent is to maximze the use of the
credit, that would be appropriate. However, the counter-effect
is that it seens to be a backdoor way of supporting exporting
sal non unprocessed.

MR. HARLAMERT highlighted [the departnment’'s] reconmendation to
specify the order in which credits are taken. He expl ai ned that
there can be confusion wth regard to which credit has priority
when there is interaction between different credits as well as

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- February 26, 2003



within a single credit. The credit priority affects how nuch
credit is eventually taken. M. Harlanert said he presuned that
the intent of HB 90 is to maxim ze the portion of earned credit
that is actually used against tax. If that's the goal, he
reconmended inserting |anguage that says "you use the credits on
a first generated, first use basis.” Therefore, there won't be
a question wth regard to whether credit generated in year one
gets wused if in subsequent years there are continuing
limtations. However, if credits are generated every year, that
credit may never get wused and nmay die before there is an
available tax to use it against. M. Harlamert sumarized,
then, that it's inportant to specify the flow of credits.

Number 2843

CHAI R SEATON asked if [specifying the flow of credits] would
matter because this |legislation sunsets any investnment after
Decenber 2005. He asked if it would be an ongoing credit.

MR. HARLAMERT answered that it would continue to matter because
credits can't be generated for an investnent after Decenber 31,
2005. However, any credits generated prior to that tinme can be
used in the three years subsequent to the year in which the
credit was generated. Therefore, there will be credits that are
applied against tax as |ate as 2008.

Nunmber 2786

MR. HARLAMERT turned to the restriction on generating credits in
a year in which one is delinquent on taxes. The [division]
generally favors the aforenentioned restriction because it seens
reasonable to expect that one would be up to date on his/her
taxes when that individual receives a credit. He related that
the language in the proposed CS is marginally effective because
one could, in theory, pay delinquent taxes at the last mnute
and not provide the noney with the return and still receive a
credit. In a year when an individual has excess credits or
carryover credits that aren't received because the individual
was delinquent, those credits would carryover to the next year
in which the individual is hopefully current. Therefore, in
order to nmke the delinquency provision nore effective, the
| anguage could specify that those [carryover] credits would be
used in the year [the individual is delinquent] as if those
credits had been taken. He noted that the division would prefer
that [this provision] take a taxpayer view.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- February 26, 2003



MR. HARLAMERT noved on to the qualifications for the property

and not ed t hat t he pr oposed CS i ncl udes t he wor d
"predom nant | y". He highlighted the need to decide how one
determ nes predom nant. He explained that generally predom nant

refers to over 50 percent, but the question arose with regard to
whet her [the 50 percent] was in reference to value or weight.
M. Harlanert stated that it's not necessarily practical for the
division to develop good regulations for this three-year credit
because by the tinme regulations are developed, the credit wll

be half over. Furthernore, it would be best, he said, to [put
in place the regulations] now, especially due to the
retroactivity of this credit. M. Harlanert pointed out that

use of the word "predom nantly" helps, although it doesn't
necessarily acconplish what's necessary unless there is a
definition of "value-added salnon products”™ or "val ue-added
sal non processing".

Nunber 2611

CHAI R SEATON asked if the list in the legislation needs to be
totally inclusive.

MR. HARLAMERT explained that the list is a list of machines and

processes that, in many cases, are common to any processing of
any species and val ue-added [product]. Therefore, there wll
have to be a judgnent call as to whether this nachine or

investnment truly is value-added and thus he said he felt that
there should be an indication of legislative intent, that is a
definition of "value-added." He expressed his belief that a
credit should be closely targeted to the desired result.

MR. HARLAMERT identified the [division's] next recommendation as
a recapture or "claw back” provision. He pointed out that npst
i nvestnment-type credits have claw back provisions that basically
uphold the taxpayer's end of the contract. [ The state] is
buying 50 percent of the individual's nachinery wth the
expectation that the individual uses the machinery for the
purpose [that +the state] wants to provide an incentive.
Therefore, it isn't unreasonable to ask that the individual
continue that purpose for a reasonable tine in exchange for [the
state's] paying for half of the individual's assets. As the
l egislation is currently witten, an individual could put a
machine in place, run one salnon through it, <call it value-
added, and sell; thus the machine would technically qualify for
full credit, even if the individual takes the mnachine to
Seattl e, Washington, the next year. Therefore, [the division]
suggests that the nmachine be required to remain in the state and

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -13- February 26, 2003



be used for val ue-added sal non processing for a specified period
of tine.

CHAI R SEATON asked if the equipnment remaining in the state would
pose an interstate comrerce problem

MR. HARLAMERT replied yes and no. There are legal theorists
that believe any state tax credit, on its face, has a
constitutional problem because it violates the basic prohibition
against treating in-state activity differently from out-of-state
activity. As a practical matter, no one has ever conplained

Therefore, it's a good idea to have the protective |anguage in
Section 4 of the |egislation.

CHAI R SEATON requested that M. Harlanert rewite his witten
comment s based on the proposed CS.

Nunber 2315

BUCK LAWUKITIS, President, North Pacific Fishing Association,
testified in support of the incentive concept. He expl ai ned
that nost of the nenbers of the association have concerns wth
regard to who wll pay the portion of the tax incentive.
However, he acknowl edged that he wunderstood, from today's
di scussion, that the state would bear the entire burden for the
tax credit. The only way the North Pacific Fishing Association
woul d support HB 90 is if the aforenmentioned is the case. He
pointed out that in many coastal areas the primary source of
revenue for municipalities and boroughs is the ex-vessel fish
price and the landing tax. Although sone boroughs have property
taxes that may partially offset sone of the |ost revenue, nmany
boroughs do not and are alnost entirely dependent upon the raw
fish taxes for revenue. Wth regard to who actually pays the
raw fish tax, M. Laukitis related his belief that the fishernman
pays the tax, while the processors nerely collect the tax and
file with the state.

MR. LAUKITIS asked whether value-added processing eventually
results in higher ex-vessel prices, or is this nerely a function
of hi gher whol esale prices [and] secondary sales. He also asked
if the [higher ex-vessel prices] would only be accrued to the
processor, not to the fisherman. M. Laukitis related that [the
North Pacific Fishing Association] would like to believe that
adding incentives would result in higher ex-vessel [prices]
because that helps the comunities and ultimately fishernen. He
asked whether processors buying value-added equipnent wth
capital would take all the noney in the end or whether it would

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -14- February 26, 2003



be shared at the ex-vessel |evel. M. Laukitis concluded by
reiterating that the association supports the incentive concept,
al though the association has sonme questions because it didn't
have the opportunity to review the proposed CS.

Nunber 2081

CHRIS GARCIA, Cook Inlet Fisherman's Fund, related his belief
that the Cook Inlet Fisherman's Fund is in favor of the intent
of the |legislation. He said that he hoped that the intent of
this legislation isn't merely to increase the profit for
existing large processors, but also to encourage snaller, new
operations to cone into existence in order to increase the val ue
of sal non throughout the state. M. Garcia directed attention
to page 2, line 18, of Version D, which defines "new property".
He recalled that there was sone concern with that, which he
shared. He suggested that the |anguage could be changed to read
"used by another person under this tax credit". He expl ai ned
that a snall operation that wants to get started in snoking fish
may need to buy used equipnent in order to be financially
i nvol ved. Therefore, if an individual is allowed to [purchase]
equi pnent in the state that has never been used under this tax
credit, it mght benefit everyone involved to allow that. M.
Garcia expressed the need to review the final draft of this
| egislation in order to [fornulate an opinion] because although
he agreed with the intent, he wasn't sure of all the fine
poi nt s.

CHAI R SEATON agreed to review the definition of "new property"
and "qualified investnent” and nentioned that there is concern
Wi th swapping equipnment [and how that would fall wunder the
definition of "new property"].

Nunber 1877

NORVAN  CCHEN, Attorney at Law, Bering Sea Fisherman's
Association, testified in support of this |egislation because
val ue- added processing is extrenely inportant for the future of
Western Al aska fisheries. Equi prent to produce val ue-added
products costs a |ot of noney. Therefore, for marginal fishers
in Western Al aska, help in obtaining the equipnent to do val ue-
added [processing] and conpete in the marketplace would be of
great assistance. He concluded by noting support of the intent
of the legislation and hoped that the issues nentioned could be
wor ked out .

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -15- February 26, 2003



CHAI R SEATON asked if the Bering Sea Fisherman's Associ ation has
any opinion on the taxpaying entity. He asked if the
association wants the tax credits to be applied on a facility
basi s.

MR. COHEN said the Bering Sea Fisherman's Association hasn't
di scussed that at all.

CHAIR SEATON requested that all J[interested parties] provide
input with regard to whether the desire is to maximze the tax
credit or provide it for individual plants. After determ ning
that no one else wshed to testify, Chair Seaton announced that
HB 90 woul d be hel d over.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Speci al Commttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at
9:45 a.m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -16- February 26, 2003



